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DESCRIBETHE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

The LaPointe Indian Cemetery has received sporadic minor restorative efforts by various 
groups over the years, but regular maintenance has not been done. The cemetery gives 
a weedy, neglected appearance with fallen fence rails, leaning and fallen tombstones, 
and grave enclosures in various disrepair. The center of the cemetery is dominated 
J>y_a_sixteen-foot tall white cross, which is in good condition and was built many years 
iijjo^y ^ersons~imknown. The rock and cement base of the cross was added in recent years 
by a concerned Madeline Island resident.

Small American flags and some artificial flowers on several graves indicate periodic at­ 
tention to some individual burials.

The cemetery area itself is enclosed by a four-foot high, two-rail wooden fence which is 
in fair condition. It was built over ten years ago to replace the original split-rail 
fence. It does not traverse the lake side. The area of the cemetery inside the fence 
is approximately three-fourths of an acre.

The west side of the cemetery is bounded by Lake Superior; the north side by a waterway 
channel giving access to the Madeline Island Marina; the east side by a blacktop road 
(Old Main Street) and parking area (immediately east of which lies a harbor of the 
marina); and on the south by a private residence and associated drive and yard. Open 
space between the cemetery and adjacent features consists of a six-foot strip of grass 
and weeds.

The cemetery itself is covered with sparse grass and weeds kept in check by visitor's 
paths and shade from the cemetery's several tall trees. Weeds are high in places and 
obscure some graves, but in general the structures of the cemetery are readily visible. 
The west, or lake side is covered by tall brush within twenty-feet of the shore. Some 
cemetery area has been eroded away by the lake in past years. Erosion-control work 
(shoreline rip-rap) is scheduled to be done in the fall of 1976 by the Red Clay project, 
to protect the cemetery from further erosion. The work should not harm the aesthetics 
of the sifte and will be done with proper clearances.

The cemetery area contains readily-apparent evidence of at least forty-eight burials. 
Seven large, wooden spirit-houses, five wooden and three metal-fence grave enclosures, 
and twenty-five headstones are prominent. Many graves have small footstones as well. 
It is known that many unmarked graves exist in the cemetery.

Headstones are in various condition ranging from very good to fallen, broken, and badly 
weathered. They are all still readable, but a few are barely so. The monuments which 
have fallen have weathered considerably more than those that remain upright, due to 
freezing and thawing of trapped water on the surface of the stone.

The gravehouses, or spirithouses, are evidently original. While their wood shows heavy 
weathering, they are not badly rotted. At least once over the years their fallen boards 
have been nailed back in place. They have a very weathered appearance and show no 
evidence of ever; being painted.
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Evidence indicates that a few headstones were installed some years after the related 
burial.

Parts of the cemetery are crowded with graves, grave fences, and monuments, while other 
areas remain fairly open. It is thought that most, if not all, of the cemetery is oc­ 
cupied by graves, as many unmarked graves are known to exist.

The original condition of the cemetery is approximated in an 1870 photo which hangs in 
the Madeline Island museum at LaPointe, The cemetery then had no apparent large trees 
and was an open, grassy site. A split-rail wood fence enclosed the area, and some grave 
houses present then have evidently been destroyed. Father Baraga's Catholic mission was 
located just south of the cemetery, in the area where the private residence now stands, 
A metal plaque affixed to a large boulder now indicates the old mission site; however this 
is confusing as the boulder is located east of the north-east corner of the cemetery and 
does not specify the old mission's correct location.

The Bad River Band of Lake Superior Chippewa Indians presently has plans to do restorative 
work on the cemetery in the near future. The work would include uprighting headstones, 
fixing fallen boards and fences, and generally replacing objects in near-original posi­ 
tions. A program of regular maintainence will be arranged by the Bad River Band* The 
cemetery may be temporarily closed to the public during the work.

Several vantage points exist within the cemetery where it is possible to view the grounds, 
graves, and Lake Superior as they have existed, virtually undisturbed, for over a hundred 
years.

The cemetery's usual atmosp&ere is serene and the serious visitor will attain an under­ 
standing of the hardships and circumstances of settlement, and a respect for the Chip* 
pewa souls that endured them.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE '• i ."'.IL^OJI 'i?<T

Reason for nomination; The LaPointe Indian Cemetery is nominated with hope of enhancing
the protection and preservation of this important property, and to create
awareness that the cemetery is a unique and rich historical kresotirceu&iving evidence of
the Chippewa contribution to modern society,

JUSTIFICATION OF AREAS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Archeology-Historic ; The cemetery, through names, dates, and information inscribed on 
tombstones, gives valuable evidence concerning the life and culture of important native 
Americans and early explorers and settlers of the north-central United States in the 
Eighteenth and Nineteenth centuries. The graves, monuments, and interred artifacts 
represent physical evidence of an Indian way of life and culture which no longer exists. ,

Exploration and Settlement; Tombstones and epitaphs in the cemetery present undeniable 
evidence that important early pioneers and settlers were active .and present ott Hftde line 
Island. A famous Indian signer of the still-significant 1854 Treaty, Chief Great Buffalo, 
lies now in the cemetery. This Treaty made settlement of northern Wisconsin possible.

leligion: The cemetery gives evidence of old religious beliefs, especially concerning
death and burial; and shows changes brought by an abrupt transition of the Chippewa to 
Christianity. The cemetery was created by Father Frederic Baraga, an important early 
missionary to the area who later became a Bishop.

Social and Humanitarian; The cemetery gives proof of inter-racial relationships and 
interactions which occured during contact between the Chippewa and early settlers of the 
Northern Wisconsin region.

HISTORY AND FEATURES
.•..' .• •; i fi *•*, 

The LaPointe Indian Cemetery was established in 1836 as part of a Catholic mission which
vafi built on Madeline Island in 1835. Father Frederic Baraga, a missionary priest who 
arrived on the Island in 1835, ordered the creation of the cemetery at a location 
Approximately one-hundred feet north of the mission. The mission was completely
plftroyed by fire in 1901 after having been rebuilt in previous years.



Levi, Sister M. Carolissa; F.S.P.A. Chippeva Indians of Yesterday and Today.
Fageamt Press, Inc., New York, New York. 1956.

Eoss, Hamilton Nelson. LaPointe—Village Outpost. Edwards Bros., Inc. 1960. 
Persemal interviews: Mrs. Pat Knode at LaPointe on 6*30-76; Mr. Raymond Maday,

Bad River'Tribal Chairman, and other Bad River Chlppewas, June, 1976.
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The cemetery received burials from 1836 through 1948. In the latter year, the Bad River 
Band of Lake Superior Chippewa Indians authorized the last burial in order to grant Mrs* 
Julia Newago's wish that she be buried near her husband. After about 1910 very few 
burials in the cemetery occured due to lack of space. Future burials there are not ex* 
pected.

Only Catholics are burled in the cemetery due to its religious affiliation; however no 
explanation has been found for the fact that only people having at least some Indian 
blood are buried there.

The LaPointe Indian Cemetery is unique in Wisconsin, and is thought to be the only ceme­ 
tery with a significant number of original gravehouses in the nation. The cemetery is a 
rare example of an organized burial ground of the time of the Chippewa transition to 
Christianity. It appears to be the oldest and most significant identifiable cemetery 
with direct ties to the settlement of the northern great lakes area.

Madeline Island was probably discovered in 1618 by Champlain, who must have encountered 
Chippewa Indians who had Inhabited the Island since about 1490. Around 1620 the Chippewas 
evidently left the island due to superstitions, but returned in 1671 to find the Island 
being settled by the French.

From settlement of Madeline Island until January, 1973, the cemetery was controlled by 
the Catholic Church. In 1973, the Diocese of Superior gave the property to the United 
States to be held in trust for the Bad River Band of Lake Superior Chippewa Indians* 
The cemetery is now in the jurisdiction of the Great Lakes Agency of the Bureau of In­ 
dian Affairs at Ashland, Wisconsin and is governed by the Bad River Tribal Council.

The LaPointe Indian Cemetery has gained historic significance over the years by serving 
as a link between present and past people and events. The cemetery, through tombstone 
inscriptions, relates circumstances of birth, life, culture, and death of people important 
in the past development and history of northern Wisconsin and surrounding regions.

In the cemetery lie the remains of early explorers and settlers, and Indian Chief's and 
leaders whose past deeds still influence current events of the region through treaties 
signed generations ago.

The cemetery contains the remains of Michel Cadotte, one of the most significant settlers 
and businessmen of the area; and those of Chief Great Buffalo, a principal chief of the 
Chippewas.
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Cadotte, the son of Indian-Frenchman Jean Baptiste Cadotte and Jean's Chtppewa wife, 
took over the LaPointe fur and trading concession in 1782. Until his death and burial 
in the LaPointe Indian Cemetery in 1837 he was well liked and respected by both the 
Indians and non-Indians of the northern Great Lakes area.

Chief Great Buffalo, also called Bezhike, was chief speaker for the Chippewa and was a 
principal in the Treaty of 1854. This Treaty ceded a large area of land to the Waited 
States and also established the Bad River and Red Cliff Indian Reservations. The Treaty 
remains an important, valid document to Wisconsin residents and Indians and has potential 
for greater significance through modern, legal interpretations. Great Buffalo was a 
principal chief of the Chippewas and remains famous for his wise leadership and war 
strategy. He died in 1855 at the age of 96 and rests in the Indian cemetery under a 
broken, but identifiable tombstone.

Chief 0-Shaka, Great Buffalo's son lies buried about 500 feet south and east of the 
cemetery proper. His remains were not placed in the cemetery because he was not a 
Catholic at the time of his death in 1853.

Michel Cadotte, 0-Shaka, Chief Great Buffalo, and other persons important in history lie 
buried in or near the cemetery and have many descendents living in the Northern Wisconsin 
area.

The cemetery gives evidence of an abrupt transition of Lake Superior Indians from an 
early lifestyle and religion to more modern living and Christianity. Mixed in the 
graveyard are found unmarked graves, graves with headstones, and graves covered by 
spirit houses. The casket-sized, wooden spirit houses were intended to protect the 
spirit of the deceased until such time as the spirit left this world, and to provide 
a place to leave food and other offerings for the spirit. The structures contained 
openings for the spirit to enter and exit. Graves without spirit houses evidently 
signify that the deceased or his family no longer believed that spirits of the dead 
needed earthly sustenence or lingered near the graves. Christian Indians buried in 
the cemetery were identified by wood crosses mounted on the graves. Many of these 
crosses are still in place today.

Before being introduced to Christianity, the Chippewas never planned ahead for burial 
sites or weeded, freshened, or disturbed a grave because of superstitious fears that 
such actions would bring death to their family. However, burial sites were sacred and 
without aversion to the Chippewa, who preferred to live close to the final resting 
places of their ancestors.
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